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STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
DIVISION OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT AND CONSTRUCTION  
PO BOX 034, TRENTON, NJ 08625-0034 
 
 
PROJECT#: A1310-00 Restoration Upgrades to Exterior Building Envelope 

State Office Building  
135 West Hanover Street,  
Trenton, Mercer County, N.J. 

 
A/E:  Lammey + Giorgio Architects 
 
DATE:  May 7, 2020 
 

BULLETIN “C” 
 

Bidder must acknowledge receipt of this Bulletin on bid form in the space provided therefor.  
 
This Bulletin is issued for the purpose of amending certain requirements of the original Contract Documents, as noted 
hereinafter, and is hereby made part of and incorporated in full force as part of the Contract Documents. Unless 
specifically noted or specified hereinafter, all work shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 
A) BIDDING INFORMATION: 

1. Contractors are advised that bids will be received on Tuesday, May 19, 2020 by 2:00 PM at the 
DPMC Plan Room.  Firms planning to submit a bid can drop off the bid to the DPMC Plan Room or 
use an overnight delivery service. However, bids not received by the bid deadline will be deemed 
non-responsive.  Bidders are permitted to attend the bid opening in person (limit one 
representative per firm to ensure proper social distancing measures) but are strongly urged due 
to the current COVID-19 pandemic emergency to view the bid opening via the ZOOM 
videoconferencing app instead of attending in person. The bid results will be posted on the 
DPMC website promptly after the opening. 

 
a) To Join the Bid Opening via the Zoom app: 
 

o You can connect with a PC/laptop or with a iOS or Android phone.  
• Download and Launch the app on your computer or smart phone.  Select the 

JOIN A MEETING blue bar (you do not need to create an account).  Then enter 
the meeting ID number at the top of the next page.  You can edit your name, then 
select “Join”.  You will be permitted to allow the app to access your camera and 
mic.  You will also be permitted to select internet audio or call.  You can select 
internet call/audio.   

 
• The bid opening meeting ID# for Zoom is 496-704-7177  

for this project. 
 

• Or use the following link to access the meeting: 
 
https://us04web.zoom.us/j/4967047177  

 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/4967047177
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o Tutorials on how to join the opening can be found at the following 
link:    https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/categories/200101697 

 
**Please note that setting up Zoom before the meeting will be helpful.** 

 
 

b) Overnight Delivery: 
 

o The address for overnight delivery (UPS, Fedex, etc) is as follows: 
 
Division of Property Management and Construction 
33 West State Street, 9th Floor 
Trenton, NJ 08608 
ATTN: Shawn Taylor 

 
 

B) CLARIFICATIONS 
1. The total roof insulation thickness of 6-inches shall be in two layers as specified.  
 
 

C) REVISIONS TO THE SPECIFICATION: 
1. Table of Contents, Delete and replace with attached “Specification Table of Contents”. 
2. Section 085250, delete in its entirety and replace with attached “Specification Section 085250 – Single 

Hung Wood Windows”.  
3. See “Specification Section 220010 – Roof Drains” attached to this bulletin. 
4. Delete all reference to Window Type ‘C’ from the specification. 

 
 

D) REVISIONS TO THE DRAWINGS: 
1. Delete all reference to removal of existing coping. 
2. Drawing Sheet D100, delete in its entirety and replace with attached “Revised Drawing D100”. 
3. Drawing Sheet A100, delete in its entirety and replace with attached “Revised Drawing A100”. Refer to 

Detail 1/A100. 
4. Drawing Sheet A103, delete in its entirety and replace with attached “Revised Drawings sheet A103”. 

Refer to revisions to Window Types. 
5. Drawing Sheet A200, delete in its entirety and replace with attached “Revised Drawings sheet A200”. 

Refer to revised Window Types.  
6. Drawing Sheet A201, delete in its entirety and replace with attached “Revised Drawings sheet A201”:  

Refer to revised Window Types. 
7. Delete all reference to Window Type ‘C’ from the drawings 

 
 
E) BIDDERS QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES 

 
Questions from Haverstick Borthwick 
 
1. Are Marvin Windows an acceptable manufacturer for the replacement windows? 

RESPONSE:  Marvin Windows is an acceptable manufacturer for the new windows.  See 
attached “Revised Drawing A103”, “Revised Drawing A200”, “Revised Drawing A201” and 
“Revised Specification Section 085250” for more information.   
 

2. Is there any underground plumbing work required? 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/categories/200101697__;!!J30X0ZrnC1oQtbA!b4c6WxD3hTlNZooXGB1R8t12jYEti9u-yLrFGD75ZqyIPhrvLqe-XFXWuMWiRGFdwTtkVHNVsw$
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RESPONSE: No underground plumbing work is required. The Contractor is required to test 
the roof drains before construction and report any problems with clogs or slow drainage to 
DPMC for correction.  If any roof drains are clogged during construction, it will be the 
Contractor’s responsibility to clear the drain and make any necessary repairs.  Note that all 
roof drains connect under the basement floor slab before leaving the building. 
 

3. Is there any ceiling related work required to install the new roof drains? 
RESPONSE:  Access to the underside of roof deck will require removal of portions of the 
acoustical tile ceilings and plaster (not asbestos-containing material) in order to make 
connections to the existing roof drains. All removals shall be made in a neat manner.  All 
plaster shall be saw-cut and after plumbing inspection approval, the Contractor shall replace 
plaster that is removed with 5/8-inch thick firecode gypsum wallboard.  Acoustical tile ceilings 
that are not removed are not required to be re-installed.  Those components shall be neatly 
stacked in the respective rooms where removed. 
 

4. The masonry restoration drawings have a note that states, “All existing information depicted on these 
documents shall be verified prior to submitting a bid”. The information was obtained from Lammey & 
Giorgio Architecture. O’Donnell & Naccarato did not verify all existing information and dimensions. If 
discrepancies are discovered, contact our office with as-built sketches for supplemental instruction. Is this 
to be paid by unit prices? 

RESPONSE:  Please refer to Specification Section 012200 – Unit Prices. 
 

5. The quantities for masonry repairs are vague. For example, on drawing S-1.0 south elevation at the lower 
left side, typical at site wall 2.0 remove and replace mortar joints, is that all mortar joints on that 
elevation, 3.0 remove and replace brick, is that one brick, how many bricks? 

RESPONSE:  Please refer to Specification Section 012200 – Unit Prices. 
 

6. Without specific quantity amounts of lineal feet of crack repair, quantities of brick and terra cotta 
replacement, and so on, we cannot provide an exact estimate. 

RESPONSE:  Please refer to Specification Section 012200 – Unit Prices. 
 

7. Does the coping removal apply to all elevations? The structural drawings show the coping to be 
pointed/caulked. 

RESPONSE: The coping will be pointed and caulked as shown on the structural drawings and 
then wrapped with new aluminum coping. See attached “Revised Drawing Sheet D100” and 
“Revised Drawing A100”. 

 
8. Is there a count and profile detail for the terra cotta replacement at the second floor windows where the 

lintel work is to occur. 
RESPONSE:  Please refer to Specification Section 012200 – Unit Prices. 

 
9. Without a walk through what you think needs repair and what the contractor thinks needs repair may by 

quite different. 
RESPONSE:  Please refer to Specification Section 012200 – Unit Prices.   

 
10. It appears that the interior side of the windows is pre-finished by the manufacturer—Are the header, jamb 

and sill extensions per detail 6/A103 pre-finished too or do they get painted on site 
RESPONSE: The header, jamb and sill extensions should be prefinished. 

 
11. Is there any fireproofing removal or repair required? None is shown on the drawings 

RESPONSE:  As indicated on the drawings, “Where fireproofing material is disturbed, 
removed or damaged and is integral to the rating of the existing fire-rated assembly, the 
material shall be replaced so that the rating is preserved.” 
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12. Is there running water at the site? 
RESPONSE:  The Contractor will have access to building domestic water for their use. 

 
13. The existing windows appear to be aluminum replacement windows, is there a wood frame under the 

aluminum frame? 
RESPONSE: The existing aluminum windows have a wood frame. All existing components will 
be removed. 

 
14. The south elevation right side site wall extends to the next property, where does the limit of work stop? 

RESPONSE: The work will be on the building only; the ramp and retaining walls will be 
addressed in another project. 

 
 

Questions from Wu & Associates, Inc.  
 
1. Section 028300 covers Lead in Construction and would apply to the fire escape paint. Has the fire escape 

paint been tested for lead and what are the results? How are we to approach this project regarding the lead 
paint, as lead abatement or lead stabilization? There is a difference between the two. 

RESPONSE: The fire escape was tested and is not coated lead base paint. Refer to HAZMAT 
“Hazardous Materials Inspection Report” that was included in the specifications. 

 
2. The General Conditions require a trailer for DPMC representative. Is the trailer required and if so, what is 

the work space requirement in terms of size, etc? 
RESPONSE:  Refer to Bulletin ‘A’, C. Amendments To The General Conditions Of The 
Contract. 

 
3. Will the Contractor need to have a trailer on site or will space be made available in the building? 

RESPONSE:  Refer to Bulletin ‘A’ regarding the trailer.  One room within the building will be 
made available for the Contractor’s use as an office and meeting location.  Contractor to 
provide meeting table and chairs in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders & General 
Conditions.  

 
4. Given expected lead times for the windows, what is DPMC’s guidance for working on window openings 

during winter conditions? 
RESPONSE: It is the Contractor’s responsibility to keep the building secure and weather-tight 
during the work.  

 
5. Will DPMC require temporary barriers/enclosures to segregate the window removal work locations from 

the occupied office spaces? Will building occupants be removed from the work areas when windows are 
being removed, replaced and finishes addressed? 

RESPONSE: The building will not be occupied during construction. The only people who will 
be accessing the building during construction is the DPMC maintenance staff. All openings 
must be secured at the end of each day. 

 
6. The Contract documents indicate there is mold present in the building. Please provide the locations of the 

mold and will mold remediation be required for this project? 
RESPONSE: Refer to HAZMAT “Hazardous Materials Inspection Report” that was included 
in the specifications, and reports on visual microbial conditions observed at the time of the 
assessment.  Conditions most likely would have deteriorated and the contractor should expect 
mold to be ubiquitous throughout the building. Mold remediation is not part of this project. 
Contractors are advised to take appropriate precautions. 

 
7. Section 085250, page 4, paragraph H specifies “3 ½” profiled brickmould casing with 2 1/8” projected sill 

nosing with end caps and frame expanders.” The window details on the window schedule on Sheet A103 
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shows head and sill flashing with metal wall panels. These details do not show any casing or subsill (sill 
nosing). The elevations also do not show any casing or subsill. Is Marvin clad casing and subsill required 
on this building? 

RESPONSE: All penthouse windows will not have the profiled brickmould casing and 
projected sill. Only the windows where brick is present will have the profiled brickmould and 
the projected sill nosing. 

 
8. Section 085250, page 5, paragraph 2.03 (A) specifies Type 1: Low E2 with argon, 2.03 (B) specifies Type 

2: tempered Low ERS Pattern, bronze or gray-lite, protective film. What type pf glass is required , Low 
E2 with argon or Low ERS with possible tint and protective film? 

RESPONSE: Glazing Type 1 is for all windows not requiring safety glazing. Glazing Type 2 is 
for all windows that require safety glazing. 

 
9. Is this a historic project where we will be submitting field survey details to an architect/historic consultant 

for approval? 
RESPONSE: Field survey details do not need to be submitted. All material submittals and shop 
drawings will be submitted to the Architect for approval. 

 
10. Is the AAMA 2605 finish correct or can we use a 2603/2604 finish? 

RESPONSE: The AAMA 2605 finish is correct. 
 

11. The interior finish of the windows is stained, correct? 
RESPONSE: The interior of the windows are to receive a prefinished stain by the 
manufacturer. 

 
12. Please provide the Prevailing Wage Determination Number. 

RESPONSE: Please refer to the Department of Labor & Workforce Development website at: 
https://www.nj.gov/labor/wagehour/wagerate/CurrentWageRates.html 

 
13. Would there be any interest in an alternate price for a historic all aluminum product? The tradeoff is that 

there would be lower thermal performance values, but the aluminum window is less maintenance. 
RESPONSE: No alternates will be considered. 

 
14. On the window types on Drawing A-103, there is a window Type ‘C’ shown. On the floor plans and 

elevations no window type ‘C’ is called out 
RESPONSE: Delete all reference to Window Type ‘C’ from the drawings and specification. See 
attached “Revised Drawing A103”. 

 
 

Questions from Hall Construction Co., Inc. 
 

1. Drawing A102, Construction Note C1.2 has no description; please advise. 
RESPONSE: Construction Note C1.2 refers to the existing concrete roof deck 

 
2. Drawing LP101 notes Construction Staging Area is already fenced in; please advise if the Project Site 

Boundary is also fenced in. 
RESPONSE: The project site boundary is not fenced in.   

 
3. The Specifications notes that the building will be partially occupied. Please advise if the fire escapes can 

be closed for preparation and painting while the building is partially occupied or will this work need to be 
done on overtime or weekends? 

RESPONSE: The building will not be occupied during construction. Only the DPMC 
maintenance staff will have access to the building; coordinate preparation and painting of fire 
escapes with DPMC.  Note that the fire escapes will not be permitted to be used until tested, 

https://www.nj.gov/labor/wagehour/wagerate/CurrentWageRates.html
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reinforced and approved.  This work will be completed under a separate contract.  Once fire 
escape reinforcing has been approved, they may be used by the Contractor for door and 
window installation, and wall repairs.  Fire escapes may not be utilized for storage. Fire escape 
preparation and painting shall be completed during normal business hours; no overtime or 
weekend work will be permitted.   
 

4. Specification Section 028213 – REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF ASBESTOS-CONTAINING 
MATERIALS, PART 2 – SCOPE OF WORK, Part 2.3. H Project Duration note 4 states “The total 
duration of the asbestos abatement work shall not exceed thirty-five (35), work shifts. The contractor is 
required to provide acceptable crew sizes, along with adequate supply of materials and equipment to 
allow work to proceed uninterrupted and at an appropriate pace to complete all abatement work within 
this number of work shifts. The contractor will be responsible to pay for the costs of the consultant 
(through a credit change order) at a cost of $1,100 per work shift for each work shift that abatement work 
is performed beyond this duration”. Due to the 35 work shift restriction, please confirm that we will be 
able to work in multiple rooms and locations at the same time which may require building occupants to 
relocate their activities. 

RESPONSE: Yes, there is the ability to work in multiple rooms and locations at the same time, 
since the building will not be occupied. 

 
5. No interior restoration of finish surfaces is called out; please confirm any repairs will be additional cost to 

the contract or covered by unit price work. 
RESPONSE: There is no interior restoration work as part of the project other than repairs to 
match existing conditions at locations that are disturbed by new work. 

 
 

Questions from Rising Sun Construction LLC 
 

1. The main roof area and two penthouse roofs all include slope arrows that indicate 1/2”/ft. slope. Is this 
structural slope or will new full tapered be required?  

RESPONSE: The roof structure is sloped based on total depths of the existing roof system being 
identical at high and low point test cuts.   

 
2. If the main roof is structurally sloped, are any of the lines that look like crickets, existing built-in/to 

remain or is the roof a simple two-way pitch to the two long edges of the building? 
RESPONSE:  As noted above, the main roof structure is sloped.  All crickets will be created by 
using tapered insulation. 

 
 
Questions from Masonry Preservation Group, Inc. 

 
1. Is there a specification for the drain replacement? 

RESPONSE:  Please refer to attached “Revised specification Section 220010 - Roof Drains”.  
 

2. Is there a specification for the fire escape? 
RESPONSE: There is no specification for the fire escape. The only work on the fire escape will 
be scraping of the existing paint and repainting. 

 
3. Will the building be in use during the construction period? 

RESPONSE: The building will not be in use during the construction period. The only people 
that will be accessing the building during construction is the DPMC maintenance staff. 

 
4. I understand site visits are allowed but is roof access allowed/permitted, if so, how? 

RESPONSE: No roof access is permitted. 
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ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Revised Specification Table of Contents - TOC 
2. Revised Specification Section 085250 – Single Hung Wood Windows 
3. Revised Specification Section 220010 – Roof Drains 
4. Revised Drawings dated 05/01/2020: 

• “Revised Drawing D100” – Existing Roof Plan & Details 
• “Revised Drawing A100” – New Roof Plan & Details 
• “Revised Drawing A103” – Revised Door and Window Schedules and Details  
• “Revised Drawing A200” - North & South Elevations 
• “Revised Drawing A201” - West & East Elevations 

 
END OF BULLETIN “C” 
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SECTION 22 00 10 – ROOF DRAINS 

PART 1 – GENERAL  

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Drawings and General Provisions of the Contract, including State of New Jersey Instructions
to Bidders and General Conditions, and Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this
Section.

1.2   SUMMARY 

A. This Division of Work includes the following items:
1. Furnish and install new retrofit roof drains at locations indicated on drawings.
2. Furnish and install new overflow roof drains at locations indicated on drawings..
3. Connect new storm water conductor piping from the new overflow roof drain into the

existing rain water conductors from the existing roof drains as indicated on the
drawings.

4. Insulate new and existing rainwater conductors with 1-inch thick fiberglass insulation
with ASJ cover.

5. Provide all cutting, patching required for the work.

1.3   CODES AND STANDARDS 

A. All shall be in accordance with the 2018 International Building Code, New Jersey edition;
and the 2018 National Standard Plumbing Code.

B. Contractor shall submit copies of all tests, reports and inspections to the Architect for
temporary rough-in and final plumbing inspections.

1.4  OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS 

A. Refer to Division 01 Section “Closeout Procedure” for submission of operational and
maintenance requirement.

1.5   WARRANTIES 

A. Refer to State of New Jersey Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions and Division 07
Section “SBS Modified Bituminous Roofing Membrane”.  Note that manufacturer’s warranty
(20-year) and roofing installer’s guarantees (5 years) shall extend to work of this Section.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS 

2.1   RAIN WATER PIPE & FITTINGS 

A. Furnish no-hub cast iron pipe and fittings.

B. Furnish steel commercial pipe supports and anchors in accordance with the 2018 National
Standard Plumbing Code.
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2.2   RETROFIT ROOF DRAINS 
 

A. Basis of Design:  Zurn Retrofit Roof Drain model # RD2150-1.  Other manufacturer’s that 
meet the requirements of the Basis of Design, including the following will be considered after 
review and approval by the Architect:  
1. J.R. Smith  
2. Wade  
3. Or approved equal.  

 
2.3   OVERFLOW ROOF DRAINS 
 

B. Basis of Design:  Zurn Overflow Roof Drain model # Z131.  Other manufacturer’s that meet 
the requirements of the Basis of Design, including the following will be considered after 
review and approval by the Architect:  
1. J.R. Smith  
2. Wade  
3. Or approved equal.  
 

2.4   GLASS FIBER PIPE INSULATION  
 

A.  Basis of Design:  Manville Products Co. “Micro-Lok AP or AP-T”.  Other manufacturer’s 
that meet the requirements of the Basis of Design, including the following will be considered 
after review and approval by the Architect:  
1. Certainteed 
2. Owens Corning 
3. Knauf 
4. Or approved equal.  

  
B.   Insulation: ASTM C547; rigid molded, noncombustible. 

1.   'K' ('ksi') value:  ASTM C335, 0.24 at 75 degrees F  
2.   Minimum Service Temperature:  -20 degrees F  
3.   Maximum Service Temperature:  850 degrees F 
4.   Maximum Moisture Absorption:  0.2 percent by volume. 
 

C.   Vapor Barrier Jacket 
1.   ASTM C921, White kraft paper reinforced with glass fiber yarn and bonded to 

aluminized film. 
2.   Moisture Vapor Transmission:  ASTM E96; 0.02 perm inches. 
3.   Secure with self-sealing longitudinal laps and butt strips.       
4.   Secure with outward clinch expanding staples and vapor barrier mastic. 

 
D.   Tie Wire:  18 gage stainless steel with twisted ends on maximum 12 inch centers. 

 
2.5   FITTING COVERS. 
 

A.   PVC Plastic; Basis of Design:  Owens-Corning, “Model Zeston 2000”.   Other 
manufacturer’s that meet the requirements of the Basis of Design, including the following 
will be considered after review and approval by the Architect:  
1. Manville 
2. Certainteed 
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3. Or approved equal. 
 

B. Jacket:  ASTM C921, One piece molded type fitting covers and sheet material, off white 
color. 
1. Minimum Service Temperature:  -40 degrees F  
2. Maximum Service Temperature:  150 degrees F  
3. Moisture Vapor Transmission:  ASTM E96; 0.002 perm inches. 
4. Maximum Flame Spread:  ASTM E84; 25. 
5. Maximum Smoke Developed:  ASTM E84; 50. 

 
PART 3 - EXECUTION    
 
3.1 GENERAL 
 

A. The Contractor shall provide all necessary material, labor and equipment to complete this 
work.   
 

B. The Contractor shall perform all work in accordance with the New Jersey Uniform 
Construction Code and the 2018 National Standard Plumbing Code.  

 
C. Contractor shall provide core drilling of all concrete decks and masonry walls for piping to be 

installed as part of this work.  Contractor shall coordinate with other Divisions of work to 
avoid conflicts with other Trades.  

 
D. Insulate the rainwater conductors and fittings.   

 
3.2   PIPE INSULATION INSTALLATION 

 
A. Install materials in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 

 
B. On exposed piping, locate insulation and cover seams in least visible locations. 

1.    Provide standard jackets, with vapor barrier, factory applied or field applied. 
2.   Insulate fittings, joints, and valves with insulation of like material and thickness as 

adjoining pipe. 
3.   Flame retardant PVC fitting covers shall be used. 
4.   Finish insulation at supports, protrusions, and interruptions 

 
3.3   TESTS 
 

A. All piping and fixtures shall be tested and inspected in accordance with the 2018 National 
Standard Plumbing Code.  The Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, instruments, 
power, etc., required for testing of the systems.  
 

B. The Contractor shall perform all required tests and inspections in the presence of the code 
inspectors.  The Architect and Project Manager shall be notified by the Contractor well in 
advance of all tests and inspections.  When completed, the Architect and Owner shall receive 
copies of all test and inspection reports.   

 
C. The Contractor shall promptly repair or replace all defective work and test again until such 

time that the particular system or component parts are approved by the code inspector and the 
Architect.  The duration of tests shall be as determined by all authorities having jurisdiction.  
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1. Before an application for final acceptance of the work will be considered, all tests 
deemed necessary to show proper execution of the work shall have been performed 
and completed in the presence of code inspector.  All testing procedures shall be 
scheduled by the Contractor with the Project Manager and NJ DCA to suit the 
convenience of the Architect.     

3. Refer to the 2018 National Plumbing Code for all tests required to meet code.  
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 
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